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11 ln order to justify an 1 inventory search 1 

of an impounded vehicle resulting in the 

discovery of criminal evidence, the law 

enforcement officer must show that such 

searches are routine in his department and 

that he has no individua1 discretion as to 

whether such search will be made. 11 

J.P. Strom 
Director SLED 
Chairman 
S.C. Law Enforcement 
Training Council 
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AC two police officers making 
inventory search of impounded 
vehicle. 
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INVENTORY SEARCH OF VEHICLE 

... NEED FOR WRITTEN REGULATIONS 

(US v. Hellman, 556 2d 442) 

We all know that the routine inventory search 

of an impounded vehicle by law enforcement 

officers has been approved by the United States 

Supreme Court ... there being two principal reasons 

for the decision: (1) Protection of property 

left in the vehicle, and (2) Protection of police 

and others, such as garage attendants, against 

false claims of misappropriation of property. 

Recently, in a case illustrated and discussed 

on the preceeding Crime-to-Court program, shown 

in September, a federal court held that the 

inventory search, while it may properly encompass 

unlocking and peering into trunks and glove 

compartments, may not extend to areas of the 

vehicle where items of value are not likely to 
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be stored ... such as, under floor mats and beneath 

automobile hoods. Search of these places, the 

court said, leaves the area of search for items of 

value that need protection and becomes a search 

for evidence. 

Now, in a far-reaching decision filed in June 

of this year, another federal court has held that 

an inventory search of a lawfully impounded vehicle 

may be unlawful if the motive of the officers in 

impounding the vehicle was not proper. Here 1 s 

what happened recently to a case made by local 

officers. 
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FACTS LEADING TO PROSECUTION 

Appellant was arrested in Eugene, Oregon, 

pursuant to a parole violator warrant. At the 

time of arrest his car was parked partially 

blocking a driveway of an oil company 1 s fuel yard. 

The car was issued a citation for blocking the 

driveway and impounded on the spot. Officers then 

immediately searched the car and took an inventory 

of its contents. The car was then towed to a 

private impounding facility. Two weeks later a 

warrant was obtained for the search of appellant 1
S 

business premises, and a week after that a second 

warrant was issued for search of a briefcase 

which had been discovered in the search of the 

car. 

At trial, stolen credit cards found in the 

briefcase were introduced against the defendant. 

He was convicted and appealed. 



-8-

LEGAL QUESTIONS INVOLVED 

The defendant on appeal, as he had done at 

trial, claimed that the inventory search of his 

vehicle was unlawful, even though the impoundment 

was proper. If the search of the vehicle was 

unlawful, the finding of the stolen credit cards 

in the briefcase was •fruit-of-the-poison-tree• 

... even tho the briefcase was opened pursuant to 

a valid search warrant. Without this evidence, 

Hellman could not have been convicted. 
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SEARCH OF IMPOUNDED VEHICLE 

... PROSECUTION 1 S POSITION 

It was argued for the prosecution that since 

inventory search of impounded vehicles was 

standard police procedure generally, the search 

in this case was proper ... even though it was 

admitted that the City of Eugene had no regulations 

requiring it and that inventory search was not 

routine with the Eugene PD. 
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LEGALITY OF INVENTORY SEARCH 

... RULING BY COURT 

The government here contends that since 

inventorying of impounded cars is, throughout the 

country, the practice generally followed by the 

police, it necessarily follows that it was reason

able here; that the only question, therefore, is 

whether the impounding itself was proper. We can

not agree. Oppenman does not go this far. Quite 

the contrary is suggested. The Courts states: 

11 (T)here is no suggestion whatever that this 

standard procedure, essentially like that 

followed throughout the country, was a pretext 

concealing an investigatory police motive. 11 

Here it is clear from the testimony of the 

searching officer that the citation, the 

impounding and the inventorying all were for "an 

investigatory police motive. 11 This alone is 
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sufficient to conclude that the warrantless search 

of the car was unreasonable . 

But even if an investigatory motive was not 

shown, our decision would be the same because the 

inventorying of impounded cars was not shown to 

be a routine practice and policy of this police 

department, as was the case ·in Opp~an. Certainly 

the record is clear that it was not the routine 

practice of the searching officer. It is the 

inventorying practice and not the impounding 

practice that, if routinely followed and supported 

by proper noninvestigatory purposes, could render 

the inventory a reasonable search under Oppenman. 

The fact that other police departments routinely 

follow such a practice may give support to the 

proposition that such a practice, if locally 

followed, is reasonable. It does not, however, 

render reasonable a search where the inventorying 

practice is not locally followed and the search, 
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thus, is a departure from local practice. A locally 

followed practice gives some assurance that a 

particular car was not singled out for special 

searching attention. Absent such assurance some 

special reason for the taking of safeguarding or 

security precautions that are not customarily 

taken should exist if the intrusion resulting from 

the taking of such precautions is to be rendered 

reasonable under the fourth amendment. 

We conclude that the search of the car was 

in violation of the fourth amendment, and that it 

was error not to grant the motion to suppress 

evidence discovered in the course of that search. 

-13-

SEARCH OF BRIEFCASE 

... COURT RULING 

As to the briefcase, the search of the car 

produced it and the unreasonableness of that 

search tainted the seizure and subsequent search 

of the briefcase as well. The motion to suppress 

should have been granted as to the contents of 

the briefcase. 
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AC two uniformed police officers, 
one with search warrant in hand, 
in front porch of a building ... 
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SEARCH WARRANT 

... UNOCCUPIED BUILDING 

(US v. Brown, 556 F2d 304) 

Execution of search warrants has always been 

a fruitful area to be examined by defense attorneys 

in their legitimate efforts to have evidence 

against their clients declared inadmissable by the 

courts. It is well-established, of course, that 

when evidence has been obtained by law enforcement 

officers in disregard of constitutional or 

statutory provisions, that evidence may not be 

used in court against the person whose rights 

have been disregarded. 

This is called the 'exclusionary rule', and 

i means, simply, that all courts of the United States 

~ have been committed by the United States Supreme 

Court to the proposition that the exclusionary 

rule is the most practicable method of enforcing 
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the unreasonable 'search' provisions of the federal 

and state constitutions. 

Such cases are brought to you by the Crime-to

Court programs not in the negative sense of telling 

you what you cannot do, but, instead, with the 

purpose of informing you how you can avoid certain 

legal traps. 

Recently, in Greenwood, Mississippi, local 

officers, accompanied by agents of the United 

States Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms Bureau, 

responded to information that illegal firearms 

were secreted at a certain residence. 
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HOW THE WARRANT WAS EXECUTED 

Agents of the Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms 

Bureau obtained a valid warrant to search 

appellant's residence for unregistered firearms. 

Accompanied by a local deputy sheriff who knew 

appellant, the federal agents surrounded the house, 

knocked on doors and windows, and announced their 

identity. They did not announce that they had a 

search warrant. There was no response to their 

knocks and calls, so, assuming that Brown was not 

on the premises, the officers dispatched the 

deputy sheriff to find Brown. After searching 

for over an hour without locating Brown, the 

deputy sheriff returned to the residence where 

the federal officers were keeping watch. Again 

they knocked and announced their identity, but 

they did not announce their purpose- the execution 

of the warrant. Being teasonably certain that the 

residence was unoccupied, the agents broke a pane 
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of glass, unlocked a door, and entered. They 

found an unregistered machine gun in the house. 

The house was, in fact, unoccupied. 

ARGUMENT ON APPEAL 

Brown was convicted of possessing an 

unregistered machine gun in violation of Federal 

Law. He appealed. The Court relates his grounds: 

11 Appellant urges that his motion to suppress 

the machine gun as evidence should have been 

granted because the federal officers, by failing 

to announce their purpose at the residence, 

violated 18 U.S.C. §3109, and thereby rendered 

the search illegal. Section 3109 provides: 

11 The officer may break open any outer or 

inner door or window of a house, or any 

part of a house, or anything therein, to 

execute a search warrant, if, after notice 

of his authority and purpose, he is refused 
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admittance or when necessary to liberate 

himself or a person aiding him in the 

execution of the warrant. 11 

RULING OF COURT 

... SEARCH VALID 

11 Clearly, it is futile to announce to an 

unoccupied building that federal officers have a 

search warrant. Although the officers, upon first 

arriving at the residence, did not know that it 

was unoccupied, it is significant that they did 

not then execute the warrant by forcible entry. 

It was not until they were reasonably certain 

that the dwelling was unoccupied that they 

executed the warrant. We need not decide whether 

their purpose violated section 3109 because they 

did not effect their purpose at that time. 

11 Under the particular facts of this case, the 

search was not unlawful as a violation of section 3109. 11 
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COMMENT BY EDITOR: 

It is important to note that the officers did 

not break open the door (forcible entry) until 

after they were reasonably sure the house was 

vacant. 

The best thing for the officers to have done 

would have been for them to (1) KNOCK, 

(2) IDENTIFY THEMSELVES, and (3) ANNOUNCE THEIR 

PURPOSE IN BEING THERE. They would by this means 

have avoided the risk that someone was in the 

house and their forcible entry would have been 

valid in any event. 

A written notation of the facts made by one 

of the officers at the time or shortly thereafter 

would have been more weighty with a court than 

the unsupported recollection of the officers. 

-21-
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EDITOR 1 S COMMENTARY: 

CONSTRUCTIVE POSSESSION 

OF MARIJUANA 

Gilbert Rodriquez entered the United States 

from Mexico with his wife and child ... he was 

stopped by customs agents who detected a strong 

odor of marijuana ... marijuana found in a warrant

less search of the trunk of the car. 

Rodriquez claimed officers had no lawful 

reason to search his car ... also that he knew 

nothing about the marijuana. He was convicted of 

possession with intent. US v. Ro~quez, 556 F2d 

277 . t ) II (C ~ 

Conviction was upheld on appeal. The Court 

ruled that odor of marijuana furnished the officers 

the 1 probable cause 1 needed to conduct a warrantless 
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search of a vehicle ... and that the jury could 

find (as it did) that ke knew of the marijuana 

in the trunk of the car and, since he was driving 

the vehicle, that he had 1 constructive possession 1 

of it. The wife was not charged. 

The Court also held that border patrol agents 

could lawfully stop vehicles for questioning of 

occupants at permanent border checkpoint. The same 

reasoning would apply to stopping of vehicles at 

a driver license, registration, or truck weight 

checkpoint. 
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ARREST WARRANT - WRONG 

PERSON PLACED IN JAIL 

In Oklahoma, local police officers arrested 

one Timothy Atkins pursuant to an arrest warrant 

issued at the instigation of the local prosecutor. 

It was later established that Atkins was not the 

person wanted, but one Edward Atkins instead ... 

Atkins (the wrong man) spent 33 days in jail and 

a mental hospital (for observation) before the 

mistake was discovered at a preliminary hearing. 

Atkin6 v. Lanning, 556 F2d 485. 

Atkins sued the police officer who executed 

the arrest warrant ... along with the prosecuting 

attorney and two of his investigators (Civil 

Rights suit in Federal Court). 

The Court said the officers were not liable 

to suit simply because the wrong person had been 

r 

~. If 
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named in the arrest warrant, stating further: 

11 A police officer who arrests someone with 

probable cause or a valid arrest warrant is 

not liable for false arrest simply because 

the innocence of the suspect is later 

established.~~ 

This ruling was based on the fact that the 

police officers arrested the man named in the arrest 

warrant, whereas, it was later shown that the wrong 

man had been named. Neither of the officers signed 

the warrant affidavit. 
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ENTRAPMENT 

The question of whether or not a defendant 

was 'entrapped' by police into committing a crime 

is affected materially by the defendant's back

ground (criminal record). It is difficult for an 

habitual drug offender, for example, to convince 

anyone that he was not 'predisposed' toward crime, 

whereas, a first offender might be more believable 

in the same circumstances. US v. Townoend, 555 F2d 

152. 

~ 
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TELEPHONE PEN REGISTERS 

A 'pen register' is a device that can be 

attached by a telephone company at its office to 

a telephone line serving a particular telephone. 

It records numbers called from that telephone, but 

not the numbers of telephones used to call into 

the target telephone. No conversation is recorded. 

Use of the 'pen register' by telephone 

companies (and divulging information received 

from its use) does not violate the Federal 

'wiretapping' laws. Hodge v. Mou~~ State6 

T & T Co., 555 F2d 254. 
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